#### **PUBLIC**

MINUTES of a meeting of IMPROVEMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – CLIMATE CHANGE, BIODIVERSITY AND CARBON REDUCTION held on Monday, 7 February 2022 at County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG.

# **PRESENT**

Councillor W Major (in the Chair)

Councillors R Redfern, B Bingham, S Bull, A Clarke, M Ford, A Hayes, T Kemp, G Kinsella and P Rose.

Officers present: Joe Battye (Director - Economy & Regeneration), Denise Ludlam (Climate Change Officer), Juliette Normington (Democratic Services Officer), Roz Savage (Improvement and Scrutiny Officer) and Janet Scholes (Assistant Director – Asset Management).

# 1/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

## 2/22 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no Declarations of Interest.

#### 3/22 MINUTES

**RESOLVED** – to confirm the non-exempt Minutes of the Improvement and Scrutiny - Climate Change, Biodiversity and Carbon Reduction meeting held on 20 September 2021.

#### 4/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no public questions.

#### 5/22 ACCELERATION LOW CARBON GROWTH

Joe Battye, Director of Economy and Regeneration introduced the report, which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, giving an overview of current work and opportunities for accelerating low carbon growth in Derbyshire, particularly in providing support for businesses, skills and training, and the adoption and manufacture of new technologies. A presentation provided more detail on the key work programmes currently being delivered.

The Council's ambitions to de-carbonise the Derbyshire economy were well publicised and set out in key documents developed in partnership with Derbyshire local authorities; key business organisations and Federation of Small Business (FSB); transport providers; universities; colleges and Government departments. A summary of the Recovery Strategy's proposals were outlined together with key projects and programmes implemented to date.

Councillor Tony King, Cabinet Member for Clean Growth and Regeneration reinforced the approach of the Council and work done by officers, to date; he particularly welcomed and encouraged training in green skills. He stated that there was a general consensus that hydrogen was the way forward for buses and this would be trialled by a county bus company sometime in the future.

Committee members also applauded the work done by officers however enquired into the use, and consideration, of other technologies such as water, agricultural waste, wind and rail; the County's cycle plan; digital infrastructure resources and funding. However concerns were expressed around the export of carbon from of the county.

#### **RESOLVED** to:

- 1. Note the approach being taken to 'build back better' in the Economic Recovery Strategy and the contributions of key work programmes to driving forward a low carbon economy; and
- 2. Consider other suitable projects and programmes that could form part of the next phase of 'good growth' recovery.

# 6/22 CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY UPDATE (ENGAGEMENT, ACTION PLAN, MONITORING AND REPORTING)

Denise Ludlam, Climate Change Officer introduced the report, which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, giving an update on the Council's Climate Change Engagement Plan, Action Plan and approach to monitoring and reporting on progress of the delivery of the Council's Climate Change Strategy: Achieving Net Zero (2021-2025) and overarching carbon reduction targets. The report was supported with a presentation made by Ms Ludlum.

The Plan set out how the Council would engage with its communities to establish and agree delivery mechanisms and communicate crucial climate messages and information to Derbyshire's residents and businesses and had been developed and supported by the Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet Member for Strategic Leadership, Culture and Tourism and Climate Change, and Leader of the Council,

Councillor Barry Lewis.

The Action Plan focussed on the priority actions, those that were likely to have the biggest positive impact on emissions reduction and those that required the most immediate action and implementation. Other projects and initiatives may be added to the Action Plan and monitored accordingly. The Plan would be reviewed and updated in full on a quarterly basis.

Mechanisms for monitoring and reporting on progress and delivery of the Strategy were detailed. Progress against a range of Deliverables and Measures within Service Plans were reported on a quarterly basis.

#### **RESOLVED to:**

- 1) Note and support the proposals to engage Derbyshire's residents and communities in the delivery of the Climate Change Strategy, as set out in the Climate Change Engagement Plan (2021-2025);
- Support the development and on-going management of an overarching and detailed climate change programme Action Plan; and
- 3) Note and support the mechanisms for monitoring and reporting on progress of the delivery of the Strategy and the overarching carbon reduction targets as set out in the report.

## 7/22 DCC PROPERTY AND LAND HOLDING MANAGEMENT

Janet Scholes, Assistant Director for Asset Management introduced the report, which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, outlining the process for ensuring that carbon reduction measures were embedded in the Council's asset management decisions. A presentation gave a summary of the Council's Property 2025 programme to review every land and property asset and ensure that an effective plan was in place for their management.

The presentation illustrated how Property 2025 linked back to the Climate Change Workshop on Property held in 2020 and helped to deliver the findings and four main priorities highlighted in that workshop. It also took the Committee through the asset planning process, which would ensure that property performance was benchmarked, measured and an appropriate plan was in place for improvements, ultimately leading to greatly improved performance across the property portfolio. This aligned with the Council's asset rationalisation programme which was driven by a number of strategic objectives, including carbon reduction.

**RESOLVED to:** receive the presentation.

# 8/22 CONSIDERATION OF A NATURE RECOVERY WORK PROGRAMME

Councillor Major, Chairman of the Committee invited Members to join a scrutiny working group to consider potential Nature Recovery initiatives that fall within the remit of the Council.

The meeting finished at 5.01 pm